
C.TY

8EAUTlFUIfc.|

SOUHTIfUt.

a

%̂.»
"\M -4
^̂

.'

NKS
OREGON • EST '920

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
***ZOOM Meeting***

Tuesday, September 8, 2020 at 6:30 pm
(or upon completion of City Council Work Session)

City Council Chamber
13690 NW Main Street

Banks, OR 97106

AGENDA

COVID-19: Due to the emergency declaration resulting from COVID-19 (Coronavirus disease) and protocols, the
City Council is limiting in-person contact and encouraging social distancing.

The City Council Work Session will be conducted remotely by video conferencing.

TO LISTEN TO THIS MEETING LIVE

Use the ZOOM App on your electronic device and the following link:
httDS://us02web.zoom.us/i/88923095587?Dwd=MXIOMiFxVOtUNzE2UzlwNiVBRGVmUT09

Meeting ID: 889 2309 5587
Password: 728525

If using phone only (no internet) call 1-253-215-8782
Meeting ID: 889 2309 5587

Password: 728525

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

CEREMONIAL PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS
1. 2020 National Preparedness Month Proclamation

CITY REPORTS, BRIEFINGS AND PROGRAMS
2. Police Monthly Briefing - Washington County Sheriff's Office - Deputy Frank Ward
3. Library Director Report - Denise Holmes, Library Director
4. 100 Year Celebration Update - Angle Lanter, MMC, City Recorder
5. Economic Development Commission Update - Jolynn Becker, City Manager

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, October 13th, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M.

Page 1 of 2



6. Planning Commission Update - Jolynn Becker, City Manager
7. City Manager Report - Jolynn Becker, City Manager

CONSENT CALENDAR: The items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine and all will be
adopted by one motion unless a Council Member requests, before the vote on the motion, to have any
item considered separately. If any item is removed from the Consent Calendar, the Mayor will indicate
when it wilt be discussed on the Business Agenda.

8. City Council Meeting Minutes - August 11, 2020.

PUBLIC HEARING

BUSINESS AGENDA
9. Shall the City Council approve the Transportation Development Tax (TDT) Project List?
10. Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the

City's Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period. (CL 2020-32)

11. Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-27, a Resolution Amending the 2020-21 Budget
to Increase the Appropriation for Material and Services by $75,000.00 for the City of Banks Small
Business Emergency Assistance Program? (CL 2020-33)

12. Shall the City Council approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds from the City of Banks
Small Business Emergency Assistance Program? (CL 2020-34)

13. Shall the City Council approve appointments to the Board, Commission and Committee positions
listed below, based on recommendations from the Mayor? (CL 2020-35)

a. Sam VanDyke - Planning Commission Position PC2 (New Term will expire December
31,2022)

b. Trevor Beard - Economic Development Commission Position ED2 (New Term will expire
December 31, 2024)

COUNCIL ROUND TABLE DISCUSSION

ADJOURN

Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, October 13th, 2020 @ 7:00 P.M.

Page 2 of 2



^

<[LN
^\\'

^

€9

i
^

^@^

NKS

NATIONAL PREPAREDNESS MONTH PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, each September is recognized as National Preparedness
Month; and

WhlEREAS, Oregonians have witnessed and experienced natural disasters
in our own community; and

WHEREAS, every community member can take active steps to protect
their families and neighbors from natural and manmade disasters; and

WHEREAS, every family and business in the City of Banks is encouraged
to take active steps to be financially secure after a disaster; and

WHEREAS, every community member is encouraged to make sure they
are properly insured against fire, flood, earthquakes, and storms; and

WHEREAS, every community member is encouraged to create a home
inventory to include as part of their disaster preparedness kit,

NOW, THEREFORE, I Mayor Peter Edison, with the advice and support of
the Banks City Council, do hereby proclaim the month of September 2020
as National Preparedness Month, and the first week of September 2020 as
Home Inventory Week in the City of Banks. Residents are encouraged to
join cities across Oregon to build a home inventory of their personal
property and speak with an insurance agent to make sure they are
financially prepared for a disaster.

I

77

I
\\\"

7

\̂

a>
\'

•y

,\'

\
11

\
^>
////

^\\

li/ll A'

kV.SS

GIVEN under my hand, this 8th day of September 2020.

<

Mayor Peter C. Edison

"s z-

3
^==--^ ^^



^f

"*^ ^|Bg^wWU|P!^^w

Library Report
September 2020

3

•••
y Library Takeout by appointment continues, as we continue to work

at the WCCLS' Service Level 2. Hours for Takeout have been

extended by one hour, from. 4:30 to 5:30 pm on Tuesday, Wednesday
and Thursday. Holds are now coming in from. all WCCLS libraries
and all member libraries are providing some type of curbside
services. Automatic notification for holds (via phone, email, text and
mail) was restored on July 28th, so staff no longer has to contact all
patrons directly. The quarantine period for returned items has been
increased from 72 to 96 hours due to the latest IMLS research.

<»

<»

»:»

The summer reading kit distribution effort supported by the Oregon
State Library has been completed. Through Susan's efforts at the
school, Jim's Market and the Food Bank, 400 books were put into
children's hands.

Young readers are able to choose their Summer Reading award book
until September 8th. As of September 1st, 38 families have taken
advantage of the curbside distribution of the books and 9 1 books
have been chosen. The award books are paid for by the Friends of
the Library.

Library circulation statistics in August - checkout of physical
niaterials is increasing as libraries expand curbside services. Banks'
total circulation was 31.9% lower than 2019, the lowest percent
difference of all libraries in the county:
^ Local physical item checkouts - 2,710 compared 2,180 in July
^ Local E-book & E-audiobooks - 1,450 compared to 1,506 in July
^ County-wide Overdrive checkouts - 192,225 compared to 196,387

in July; physical item checkouts were 298,891 vs. 190,526 in July.
^ County-wide Kanopy streaming video usage (number of patrons) -

2,609 compared to 2,789 in July.



CITY OF

NKS
CELEBRATING

XJ

4

1920 - 2020

100 Year Celebration Challenge Coins and 100 Year Celebration Pint Glasses are
available for purchase.

September Giveaway (Cloth Face Mask) is available at City Hall.



7

>f
^ ^v <w^^?<^ v-^^
~^It

OF
CITY

City Manager Report

City Council Meeting

September 8, 2020



News & Updates
COVID-19 Updates

Several of the daily meetings are transitioning to weekly or monthly
Submitted our 1st COVID Expenses Reimbursement Form to Washington Co for reimbursement
Received applications for the Small Business Grant Program

CDBG Application Process has started.
Wilkes Street Project (Street and Water Project) which includes sidewalks
Demographic Survey was needed for this project. The last survey was outdated
We have applied for a Small Cities Allotment Grant for $100,000 for this area

US Bank

Eliminating the need to physical go to the banks for daily deposits
There are several vacancies on the following Boards/Commissions/Committees

Planning Commission - 3 positions

Budget Committee - 2 positions

LIRA Budget Committee - 1 position

Economic Development Commission - 13 positions

Park, Rec & tree Board - 1 position



Work Order Report

Open Work Orders: 40
Move Out: 3
Meter Change Out: 37

Completed Work Orders: 14
Miscellaneous: 2
Move Out: 10
Verify Meter Reading: 1
Move In: 1

Tasks Completed:
- Repaired Water Leaks on Sellers Rd, Cedar Canyon Rd, and Banks Rd



2020/2021council Work Plan

*> Sustainable Growth

•> Additional Parking for Banks-Vernonia State Trailhead
*:» Striping down Main Street

*> Amending the City Code on Parking (Shared, etc.)
*:* Project to enhance the overflow parking - cxl
*:• Starting a conversation with Washington County, State Parks and Salmonberry to see if we can

piggyback a parking project with the intersection project
*> Community Center

*:* Managing Resources
*:* Non-Operational Vehicle Ordinance

•:* Started the review to see if the ordinance needs to be amended

*:* Continue Emergency Preparedness Plan and Coordination

*> Grant was applied for with Banks Fire thru Forest Grove Fire and Cornelius Fire
•:» Requested amount was $43,000. Awarded $25,000. Waiting on what portion that Banks Fire will

receive.

*:* Started the process to get quote from consultant to look at ERP for Banks School District,
Banks Fire, and City of Banks.

<* Laserfiche

•:* Community Services
*:* Park Improvements

*:» Submitted a grant application to State of Oregon Parks & Recreation for a Basketball Court.
*:* With COVID-19, the review of all applications was deferred until this fall.



Projects Updates
*:* New Water Sources

Task 1 - WMCP outline and technical analysis

• Final edits on WMCP. Submitted the WMCP to State of Oregon and Washington County
Task 2 - Groundwater Ceri:ifications

Task 3 - Westside Water Development - Surface water permit and cost estimates
Task 4 - Complete.
Task 5 - Developing new groundwater locations and permits
Task 6 - Water Supply Negotiations



Project Updates
Construction Project

•> Transmission Line & Water Distribution Improvements Project
^ Call for bids was announced on August 14
»> Pre-Bid Conference - August 26,2020
*:* Bid Opening - September 24,2020
*> Award the contract - October 1, 2020

4> Park Street Water & Road Project
*> Project is scheduled to be completed by August 31 ,2020.



Upcoming Calendar
Work Session/City Council Meeting - October 13, 2020



<•;

.-b.

NKS
crrv

August 2020

Fund

# Fund

2019-2020

Beginning

Balance

Un-Audited

Beginning

Balance

as of 7-1-2020

2020-2021

Proposed

Beginning

Balance

1 General Fund $426,620.34 $505,743.71

2 Water Fund $155,820.22 $239,017.76
3 Library Fund $49,030.54 $42,836.50
4 Streets & Roads Fund $398,797.60 $310,489.36

5 Water Bond Debt Fund $45,943.99 $46,686.81
6 Traffic impact Reserve Fund $444,413.24 $452,551.22

7 Police Services Fund $325,895.12 $302,213.15

8 System Development Reserve Fund $120,072.29 $140,604.56

9 Water Utility Depreciation Fund $79,215.58 $43,573.66

10 Parks & Trees Fund $38,262.70 $35,059.89

11 TDT Fund $328,969.96 $382,101.09

12 Transportation SDC Fund $235,874.23 $269,163.97

13 Capital Project Reserve $197,383.58 $225,374.55

14 Capital Projects $0.00 $0.00

15 TLT $0.00 $0.00

16 Water Utility Reserve $4,723.51 $5,842.92

17 Water Utility Project $0.35 $0.78

18 Park SDC $62,204.27 $73,447.06

Budget Variance Report - Threshold is greater than 23% for total expense

CATEGORY ITEMS:

GENERAL FUND/MUNICIPAL COURT (FUND #11

Personal Services -12.6%
Materials & Services - 27.5%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%
Debt Service-0.0%
Transfer-0.0%



WATER FUND (FUND #21

Personal Services -18.5%
Materials & Services - 22.4%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%
Debt Sen/ice-0.0%
Transfer-0.0%

LIBRARY FUND (FUND #3)

Personal Services- 15.6%
Materials & Services - 16.7%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%
Debt Service - 0.0%
Transfer-0.0%

STREETS/ROADS FUND (FUND #4)

Personal Services-14.8%
Materials & Services - 17.0%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%

WATER BONDED DEBT FUND (FUND #51

Materials & Services - 0.0%
Debt Services-100.0%

TRAFFIC IMPACT FUND (FUND #6)

Materials & Services- 0.0%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%

POLICE SERVICES FUND (FUND #71

Personal Services - 18.9%
Materials & Services - 16.1%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT RESOURCE FUND (FUND #81

Capital Outlay - 0.0%

WATER DEPRECIATION FUND (FUND #91

Materials & Services- 0.0%
Capital Outlay - 0.6%
Transfer-0.0%

PARKS & TREES FUND (FUND #10)

Personal Services- 13.8%
Materials & Services - 15.7%
Capital Outlay - 0.0%
Transfer-0.0%



TDT FUND (FUND #11)

Capital Outlay - 0.0%

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND (FUND #121

Capital Outlay - 0.0%

CAPITAL PROJECT RESERVE FUND (FUND #131

Capital Outlay - 0.0%

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (FUND #14)

Capital Outlay - 23.3%

WATER UTILITY EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND (FUND #15)

Capital Outlay - 0.0%

WATER UTILITY RESERVE FUND (FUND #16)

Capital Outlay-0.0%

WATER UTILITY PROJECT FUND (FUND #171

Capital Outlay-0.1%

PARK SDC FUND (FUND #18)

Capital Outlay-1.1%



8

*f
*w ^^

s;0>^
^.%
y^.
It.

CITY
OF

Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, August 11, 2020

MEETING MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER Mayor Edison called to order the Regular Meeting of the Banks City Council at 7:07 pm.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL
Present were:

Staff Present:

Mayor Pete Edison, Councilor Marsha Kirk, Councilor Stephanie Jones, Councilor Michael Nelson,
Councilor Mark Gregg, Councilor Mike Lyda, Councilor Erica Harold-Heine

City Manager Jolynn Becker, City Recorder Angie Lanter, City Planner Lauren Scott, City Attorney
Dan Kearns, Library Director Denise Holmes

CEREMONIAL PRESENTATIONS & PROCLAMATIONS
1. CIS Longevity Award - Mayor Edison noted the City had received a letter and plaque from CIS recognizing

the City as a customer for 30 years.

CITY REPORTS, BRIEFINGS, AND PROGRAMS
2. Police Monthly Briefing - Washington County Sheriff's Office - Deputy Frank Ward presented the Police

Monthly Briefing for July, adding it was great to be back and that he appreciated the support he had
received over the last 16 months. He liked that the City had two dedicated officers, which would improve
communication on updates about what occurred during their shifts.
City Manager Becker announced the Municipal Court would start being held monthly again in September.

3. Library Director Report -Library Director Holmes was not available; her report was in the packet.
4. 100 Year Celebration Update - City Recorder Lanter said she had nothing to report.
5. Economic Development Commission Update - City Manager Becker reported that the August meeting

involved discussion about the Wayfinding Signs. Next month, the Commission would review applications
for the Fagade Program. Two applications had been submitted and two more were expected following
conversations with business owners in town.

6. Planning Commission Update - No Planning Commission meeting was held in July.
7. City Manager Report - City Manager Becker updated Council on the Park User Fee, which would begin

being charged this month, and that ODOT would replace the flashing pedestrian crossing light on Hwy 47

City Council Meeting - August 11,2020
Minutes Page 1 of 6



at the Banks Middle School and move it farther north to align with the School District entrance. ODOT
would provide the project schedule once the engineering design was complete and a budget was
established. She addressed questions about the project, reviewing its history, noting that it was identified
in the Bike and Pedestrian Plan, and clarifying the existing crossing light would be replaced by a button-
activated flashing light that would stop north and south bound traffic on Hwy 47. ODOT would be
requesting comments from both the City and School District about the project. If the City and School
District were awarded the ODOT Safe Routes to School grant, a consultant would identify infrastructure
and study traffic traveling in and out of all three schools to help determine a safer way to control traffic in
the area. The City signed an agreement with Community Action for a customer assistant program
agreement to allow funds to be sent directly to the City rather to the individuals requesting assistance
with their water bills. She also updated on several grant opportunities, including the Washington County
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) requirements being addressed for the Wilkes St Project and
a $100,000 grant with ODOT's Small City Allotment Program that could also be used for Wilkes St. She
clarified the Community Action funds could not be used for library fines, only for utility costs.

CONSENT CALENDAR
8. City Council Meeting Minutes-July 14th, 2020.
9. Shall the City Council adopt Resolution #2020-24, a Resolution Authorizing the Write-Off Bad

Debt/Accounts Receivables? (CL 2020-28)
10. Shall the City Council approve an Audit Services Contract with Dennis Conner, CPA for the years ending

June 30, 2020, 2021 and 2022? (CL 2020-29)
11. Shall the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign and execute an Inter-Governmental Agreement

with Washington County Finance Department for the Cities and Special Districts Assistance Grant for the
city's expenses related to COVID-19, in an amount not to exceed $7,567.00?

Councilor Jones moved to approve the Consent Calendar, seconded by Councilor Lyda. MOTION CARRIED 6-0.
Ayes: Gregg, Kirk, Jones, Harold-Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None

PUBLIC HEARING
12. Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-22, a Resolution Granting an Exemption from

Competitive Bid Requirements and Authorizing Execution of a Contract with Five Star Builders to Design
and Construct a "Welcome to Banks" Monument Sign, not to Exceed $20,000?

Mayor Edison opened the public hearing at 7:23 pm.

City Manager Becker displayed an example of the proposed monument sign. Five Star Builders presented
a total cost of $56,325 minus Five Star's donation of $36,000, leaving the remaining cost to the City of
$20,000. The City received a second quote for $65,000 from Security Signs for a manufacture and install of
the sign, but it did not include the demolition of the existing sign or the electrical installation.

City Recorder Lanter confirmed that no one was present on Zoom to provide public testimony regarding
the Resolution.

Mayor Edison read into the record an email from Kathleen Fleming, which was included in the packet,
stating her opposition to the Resolution.

City Attorney Kearns noted discussions regarding the monument sign concept and Five Star's willingness
to create and install the sign for the City took place at the Economic Development Commission (EDC).
What justified the exemption was Five Star's significant donation, which addressed two critical findings

City Council Meeting - August 11,2020
Minutes Page 2 of 6



from both the State and City Code: it was unlikely the exemption would encourage favoritism in the
reward of public improvement contracts, or substantially diminish competition for public improvements,
and that the award of this contract under the exemption would result in a substantial cost savings to the
City. It was unlikely anyone else would offer such a donation or be able to submit a comparable bid. He
did not believe Ms. Fleming had the benefit of reading the Resolution, which explained the background.

Mayor Edison closed the hearing at 7:30 pm.

Councilor Lyda moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-22, a Resolution Granting an Exemption from Competitive
Bid Requirements and Authorizing Execution of a Contract with Five Star Builders to Design and Construct a
"Welcome to Banks" Monument Sign, not to Exceed $20,000, seconded by Councilor Gregg. MOTION CARRIED 6-
0. Ayes: Gregg, Kirk, Jones, Harold-Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None

13. Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-23, a Resolution Granting Preliminary Approval for the
Annexation of an Island of Approximately 1.03 Acres Surrounded by the City and Authorizing a Public Vote
on the Annexation Request (Island Annexation)?

Mayor Edison opened the public hearing at 7:34 pm and read the conduct of hearing procedures and cited
the applicable Code criteria.

City Planner Scott presented the Staff report, displaying a map of the annexation area shown on page 57
of the packet and describing the background and applicable Code criteria regarding the proposed
annexation. Addressing questions from Council, she noted the properties not indicated as part of the
annexation were already within the city limits and confirmed there would be no further islands along that
strip of land.

City Recorder Lanter confirmed that no one was present on Zoom to provide public testimony regarding
the Resolution.

City Manager Becker confirmed that no written testimony had been received, but the City received a

phone call from one of the property owners who was concerned about losing their second tax lot. Staff
clarified the two tax lots would be converted into one lot, which satisfied their concern.

Mayor Edison closed the hearing at 7:44 pm.

Councilor Lyda clarified that he did not own any property within the annexation area, and therefore, he
had not conflict of interest.

Councilor Lyda moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-23, a Resolution Granting Preliminary Approval for the
Annexation of an Island of Approximately 1.03 Acres Surrounded by the City and Authorizing a Public Vote on the
Annexation Request (Island Annexation, seconded by Councilor Harold-Heine. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. Ayes: Gregg,
Kirk, Jones, Harold-Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None.

14. Shall the City Council Adopt Resolution No. 2020-25, a Resolution Renewing a Moratorium on New
Development in the City of Banks Due to a Documented Shortage of Municipal Water Supply? (CL 2020-

City Council Meeting - August 11,2020
Minutes Page 3 of 6



City Attorney Kearns noted State law required the City to show it was making progress on resolving the
water shortage that resulted in the water moratorium. The water transition line replacement project was
the largest public works project the City had ever undertaken and it would go to bid at the end of the
month. He noted the City had not received any adverse comments from DLCD about the moratorium.
The attached updated engineering report documented the steps the City had and was taking to resolve
the problem.

Mayor Edison opened the public hearing at 7:49 pm.

City Recorder Lanter confirmed the City had received no emails or phone calls and that no one was
present on Zoom to provide public testimony regarding the Resolution.

Mayor Edison closed the hearing at 7:50 pm.

Councilor Jones moved to adopt Resolution No. 2020-25, a Resolution Renewing a Moratorium on New
Development in the City of Banks Due to a Documented Shortage of Municipal Water Supply, seconded by
Councilor Kirk. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. Ayes: Gregg, Kirk, Jones, Harold-Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None.

BUSINESS AGENDA

15. Shall the City Council authorize staff to proceed with Temporary Business Promotion Signage?

City Manager Becker clarified all the applications would be under the City, which would also be signing the
lease agreement with the Port ofTillamook.

Council discussed several aspects regarding the project, including whether the Chamber of Commerce
should lead the project in order to garner funding more easily and have the City dealing with the Port; and
having a more robust sign than the banner concept currently proposed that could be updated over time
with different businesses, if needed. The City's Wayfinding Program might also be a factor if the sign did
not match that program.

Councilor Kirk briefly explained the funding opportunity available from Travel Oregon was no longer
available because the City's process had taken too long. Washington County Visitors Association had
agreed to give $1,000 to $3,000 toward the project and the Chamber said it would donate $1,000. She
had not known there would be a lease for the property; otherwise the sign project would be done
already. She confirmed she had told the businesses that the sign would not cost them anything.
Shortening the sign to 7 ft would reduce costs, and eliminate the structure permit costs, reducing the cost
from $6400 to closer to $4,000, not including any costs to the City.

Following discussion. Council agreed to proceed with the sign labeled with $6400, noting if the City was
investing money into a more robust, structurally sound sign with the map would be best for the
community and local businesses. Potential donations would offset the cost and the sign would last longer.

Councilor Lyda moved that the City of Banks appropriate $3,500 toward the cost of the Temporary Business
Promotion Signage with any remaining needed funds coming from outside sources and authorize staff to proceed
with the project, seconded by Councilor Harold-Heine. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. Ayes: Gregg, Kirk, Jones, Harold-
Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None.

City Council Meeting-August 11, 2020
Minutes Page 4 of 6



Mayor Edison suggested setting a maximum budget that the City would be responsible for and then go
get donations, grants, etc. The issue with the motion as stated was that if the additional funding was not
obtained right away and the sign cost more than $3500, then the final amount needed was
unknown/uncertain. Setting a higher amount that the City would be responsible for would allow the City
to go get grant funds and start project immediately.

Councilor Lyda amended his motion and moved that the City of Banks appropriate $5,000 toward the cost of the
Temporary Business Promotion Signage with any remaining needed funds to be offset by outside sources and
authorize staff to proceed with the project, seconded by Councilor Gregg. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. Ayes: Gregg,
Kirk, Jones, Harold-Heine, Lyda, Nelson; Nays: None.

16. Shall the City Council adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook? (CL 2020-31)

Mayor Edison noted a red line version of the Handbook was included in the packet.

Councilor Jones noted a typo, stating the word "of" should not have been stricken where it stated,
"should bring the matter to the attention of of any of the following city officials..." under Complaint
Procedure.

Councilor Gregg moved to adopt the revised City of Banks Employee Handbook as presented, seconded by
Councilor Jones. MOTION CARRIED 6-0. Ayes: Jones, Lyda, Kirk, Nelson, Gregg, Harold-Heine; Nays: None

COUNCIL ROUND TABLE DISCUSSION

Councilor Kirk said she wanted to ensure that Mayor Edison and the EDC Chair acknowledged that the Chamber
had given the property for the entryway monument sign. She said she was advocating for being done with Zoom
meetings.

Councilor Jones reported the School Board had held a number of meetings to do planning and was then told by
the State that school would be done virtually. The Board would be working to distribute Chromebooks to older
kids and IPads to K through 2nd grade students.

Councilor Gregg reported the WCCCA Dispatch Center was coming along very well and a new dispatch center
director would be hired given the current director's retirement.

Councilor Harold-Heine commended City Manager Becker for the COVID-19 timeline, noting nothing referenced
her regular daily tasks. She asked if a synopsis of the hard work she did on the City's behalf could be included in
the packet to give Council a better understanding of all she did for the City.

Councilor Kirk noted the City of Newport City Manager was a speaker during her League of Oregon Cities (LOC)
training and he took brief notes daily about the contacts he made or had contacted him and emailed the
highlights to his city council every couple of weeks so they had a better idea of what the City Manager was dealing
with, as well as the hot spots and topics in the community.

Council's suggestions included making the reporting part of the City Manager's goals, and identifying hot topics or
things citizens were calling City Hall about in the Monthly report to give Council feedback about citizen concerns.
[Mayor stated it was something to think about.-.but that was it-no follow up action]

City Council Meeting - August 11,2020
Minutes Page 5 of 6



Councilor Harold-Heine also updated on an email received from Virginia Ohler from West Tuality Habitat for
Humanity, which reported the reopening of the ReStore that was extremely short staffed but very busy even with
its reduced hours, and described the recent grants West Tuality Habitat for Humanity had received, which
included a $300,000 LIFT Award grant for the next three, three-bedroom homes Habitat will be creating for the
Kidd Court Project in Forest Grove.

Mayor Edison noted the candidate deadline to file for public office in Banks was on August 17th at 1 pm. He shared
it had been nice having his youngest son and his girlfriend home over the last few weeks, which has been his
respite from COVID-19.

Library Director Holmes reported Summer Reading kits and books were given away again at the school, and some
people came without wanting the food, which was a success.

City Recorder Lanter stated she had received one candidate filing for public office in Banks. She noted the LOC
Conference would be held October 14 and 15th via Zoom and for those Councilors interested, she would be sure
they were registered for the sessions they wanted. She added 100th Celebration pint glasses and challenge
coinswere still available.

City Manager Becker stated the announcements regarding the Small Business Grant Program had been sent out
via email, and she called the businesses on Main St to alert them about the email and explained the information
was also on the City's website. She confirmed the Facade Program was also available, and that three local
businesses had applied for the Columbia Pacific Grant, which had a July 31st deadline, adding she would receive
notification if they were awarded any of that grant funding.

ADJOURN The meeting adjourned at 8:27 pm.

Submitted by:

Angie Lanter - City Recorder

City Council Meeting - August 11,2020
Minutes Page 6 of 6



9

Project List Addition Addition Addition Addition

Jurisdiction City of Banks City of Banks City of Banks City of Banks

Project
Description and
Location

Intersection

improvement at
Aerts Road and OR
6

Widen, improve
intersection sight
distance, provide
shoulders, and
construct

continuous or

intermittent left-

turn lanes on Banks

Road between the

intersection with

OR 47 and the

intersection with

Aerts Road.

New collector

street in West

Banks from Cedar

Canyon to Main
Street south of
Sunset Park at a
new intersection
across from Trellis

Way 2-3 lanes

New collector

street in East

Banks from Banks

Road to Aerts

Road north of OR

6
2-3 lanes

Estimated project
costs

$5,800,000 $10,193,542 $15,688,944 $5,497,877

Other funding
sources

City System
Development
Charges

City System
Development
Charges

City System
Development
Charges

City System
Development
Charges

Estimated Project
Completion
Timeframe

2025-2040 2025-2040 2025-2040 2025-2040

Other relevant
information

Portion of Banks
Road from OR47 to
Aerts Road is

outside of UGB and
City Limits

Banks Road sight
distance

improvements
needed prior to
constructing East
Collector

intersection with

Banks Road



10
s
^g

•̂-i.
u.

CITY
OF

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Agenda Item:

Council Letter 2020-32
Agenda of September 8, 2020

Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the
City's Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period?

Background:

The City is applying foraCDBG Grant for the 2021-2022 Funding Period. The applications are due
by 5:00 p.m., Friday, October 2nd, 2020. With this application, a form of authorization of the Council
must accompany the application when submitted.

The project is Wilkes Street Water Line and Accessibility Improvements. This is the last project in
this area. The other two completed projects were Commerce Street and Park Street.

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and
Authorizing the City's Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period.

Coun^llAlternatives:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the City's
Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)
Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period.

Sample Motion: "I make a motion to adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting
and Authorizing the City's Application with Washington County for Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period".

2. Decline to adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the
City's Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period.

Jolynn Becker
City Manager



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-26



^ .!/

^.s.^;?
.•^ ;f

-t

NKS
CITY

0>

Resolution 2020-26

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY'S APPLICATION
WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY FOR COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

(CDBG) FUNDING FOR THE 2020-2021 FUNDING PERIOD.

The Banks City Council makes the following findings:

WHEREAS, the City of Banks has a Water System Master Plan that calls for an
ongoing program of replacing deficient water system segments and a Transportation
System Master Plan that identifies a need to make on-going street and pedestrian
improvements throughout the City; and

WHEREAS Washington County administers the Community Development Block
Grant (CDGB) funding program for such infrastructure improvement and maintenance
projects; and

WHEREAS, CDBG applicants are required to provide the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HDD) and the County with current demographics of
the service area; and

WHEREAS, City Staff conducted a demographic survey of property owners and
residents within the service area who are determined to be beneficiaries of the

proposed project; and

WHEREAS, Council support for CDGB funding in the form of a resolution is
required for a complete application.

NOW THEREFORE, based on the foregoing findings, the Banks City Council
resolves that the City Manager is hereby authorized to and shall complete and file all
necessary forms with Washington County to apply for CDGB block grant funding for the
following public infrastructure improvement projects for the 2020-2021 funding period:

Street and water line infrastructure improvements on, NW Parmley Avenue and NW
Wilkes Street.

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 8h day of September 2020.

Peter C. Edison, Mayor

Attest:

Angie Lanter, City Recorder



11
»
^

'-A

C! TY

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Council Letter 2020-33
Agenda of September 8, 2020

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-27, a Resolution amending the 2020-21 Budget to
Increase the Appropriation for Material & Services by $75,000.00 for the City of Banks Small
Business Emergency Assistance Program?

Background:

The City of Banks adopted its 2020-21 Budget prior to the onset of the COVID-19 Pandemic. The
COVID-19 Pandemic has caused significant economic losses for individuals and businesses across
the country and within the Banks community.

The City of Banks is the recipient of $75,000.00 in CARES Act Coronavirus Relief Funding to be
distributed to local businesses -for profit and non-profit corporations -to cover losses attributable
to the COVID-19 Pandemic between March 1 and December 31, 2020. The City's CARES Act
funding comes from Washington County.

The City of Banks Annual Budget for fiscal year 2020-21 needs to be amended to increase the
appropriation for General Fund #01 Materials and Services to account for the $75,000.00 for
funding local business losses and expenses directly related to COVID-19 between March 1 to
December 31, 2020.

It is recommended that the City Council adopt Resolution #2020-27 a Resolution amending the
2020-21 Budget to Increase the Appropriation for Material & Services by $75,000.00 for the City of
Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program?

Council Alternatives:

1. Adopt Resolution No. 2020-27.

Sample Motion: "I make a motion to adopt Resolution amending the 2020-21 Budget to
Increase the Appropriation for Material & Services by $75,000.00 for the City of Banks Small
Business Emergency Assistance Program".

2. Decline to adopt Resolution No. 2020-27.

Jolynn Becker
City Manager



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-27



^̂
 ^-

^??
^^
^.^

NKS
CITY
0'

Resolution2020-27

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 2020-21 BUDGET TO INCREASE THE
APPROPRIATION FOR MATERIALS AND SERVICES BY $75,000 FOR THE CITY

OF BANKS SMALL BUSINESS EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

WHEREAS, the City of Banks adopted its 2020-21 Budget prior to the onset of
the COVID-19 Pandemic; and

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 Pandemic has caused significant economic losses for
individuals and businesses across the country and within the Banks community; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Congress passed the CARES Act, which included an
allocation of $150 Billion for Coronavirus relief; and

WHEREAS, the City of Banks is the recipient of $75,000 in CARES Act
Coronavirus relief funding to be distributed to local businesses - for profit and non-profit
corporations - to cover losses attributable to the COVID-19 Pandemic between March 1
and December 31, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the City's CARES Act funding comes to it through Washington
County and ORS 294.338(3) requires a budget amendment to account for the increase
appropriation from the CARES Act;

WHEREAS, the City Council took up consideration of a budget amendment to
increase the appropriation of the Materials and Services budget line item at its regular
meeting on September 8, 2020.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of City of Banks that
the City of Banks Annual Budget for fiscal year 2020-21 shall be amended to increase
the appropriation for General Fund #01 Materials and Services to account for $75,000 in
additional funding from the CARES Act for local business loses and expenses directly
related to COVID-19 between March 1 to December 31, 2020.



General Fund #01 Appropriation and Transfer

General Fund Present Changes New

Personal Service $160,210.00 $160,210.00

Material & Supplies $ 302,740.00 $ 75,000.00 $ 377,740.00

Capital Outlay $ 2,000.00 $ 2,000.00

Debt Service $ 1,795.00 $ 1,795.00

Interfund Transfers $178,307.00 $178,307.00

Contingencies $109,961.00 $109,961.00

Unappropriated $104,645.00 $104,645.00

Total
$859,658.00 $ 75,000.00 $934,658.00

ADOPTED, APPROVED AND EFFECTIVE this 8h day of September 2020.

Peter C. Edison, Mayor

Attest:

Angie Lanter, City Recorder



CITY

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

12
^
^
^-;
'^
^

OF

Council Letter 2020-34
Agenda of September 8, 2020

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds from the City of
Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program?

Background:

The COVID-19 Pandemic has caused significant economic losses for individuals and
businesses across the country and within the Banks community. The City of Banks is
the recipient of $75,000 in CARES Act Coronavirus relief funding to be distributed to
local businesses - for profit and non-profit corporations.

The City of Banks create a Small Business Emergency Assistance Program that opened on
August 10, 2020 and closed on August 28, 2020.

It is recommended that the City Council approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds
from the City of Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program.

Council Alternatives:

1. Approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds from the City of Banks Small
Business Emergency Assistance Program.

Sample Motion: "I make a motion to approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded
Funds from the City of Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program".

2. Decline approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds from the City of Banks
Small Business Emergency Assistance Program.

Jolynn Becker
City Manager



•S^^^-y .,..•: s..<,,:

LIST OF RECIPIENTS WILL BE PRESENTED AT THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING



^
^

OF

CITY

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
Banks, Oregon

Council Letter 2020-35
Agenda of September 8, 2020

13

Agenda Item:

Shall the City Council approve appointments to the Board, Commission and Committee
positions listed below, based on recommendations from the Mayor?

a. Sam VanDyke - Planning Commission Position PC2 (New term will expire on
December 31, 2022)

b. Trevor Beard - Economic Development Commission Position ED2 (New Term will
expire December 31, 2024)

Background:

Sam VanDyke has previously served on the Planning Commission. His previous term ended on
December 31, 2019. Due to recent changes to term limits on the Planning Commission, Mr.
VanDyke is eligible to be appointed to the Planning Commission.

Trevor Beard will be a new appointment.

It is recommended that the City Council confirm the Mayor's appointment to this position.

Council Alternatives:

1. Confirm the Mayor's appointments to the Boards, Commissions, and Committees.

Sample Motion:
"I make a motion to confirm the Mayor's appointments to the Boards, Commissions, and
Committees."

2. Decline to confirm the Mayor's appointments.

Jolynn Becker
City Manager


	Agenda: September 8, 2020 City Council Meeting
	Agenda Item #1: National Preparedness Month Proclamation
	Agenda Item #3: Library Director Report
	Agenda Item #4: 100 Year Celebration Update
	Agenda Item #7: City Manager Report
	Agenda Item #8: Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes from August 11, 2020
	Agenda Item #9: Shall the City Council approve the Transportation Development Tax (TDT) Project List?
	Agenda Item #10: Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-26, a Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the City's Application with Washington County for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding for the 2021-2022 Funding Period?
	Agenda Item #11: Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2020-27, a Resolution amending the 2020-21 Budget to Increase the Appropriation for Material & Services by $75,000.00 for the City of Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program?
	Agenda Item #12: Shall the City Council approve the list of Recipients to be Awarded Funds from the City of Banks Small Business Emergency Assistance Program?
	Agenda Item #13: Shall the City Council approve appointments to the Board, Commission and Committee positions listed below, based on recommendations from the Mayor?

